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URNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NORTH DAKOTA
SOUTHWESTERN DIVISIOIN

Jeanete Delacerda,

n/k/a Jeanette Sanderson,
On Baehalf of Harsell and All
Others Simllarly Situzted,

Case No.

Plaintiffs,
C! ASS ACTION COMPLAINT

AND JURY DENMAND.

)

)

)

)

)

)

)
VE. )
)
North Dakota Department of Human )
Services; Carol Oison, Individually and )
as Diractor of the North Dakota )
Departmeant of Human Sarvices; )
Annatie Bendish and Galen Hanson, )
in their individual and official capacities, )
)

)

Datendants.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

Plaintifi, Jeanstie Dzlacerda n/K/a Jeanstie Sanderson, individuslly and on behalf

of all others similarly situated, hereby states as foliows:
NATURE OF ACTION

1. The nature of this case arises from the North Dakota Department of
Human Services {"the Department”) improperly demanding and recswing recovery
from the proceseds of third party benefits obtalned by Medicaid reclpienis.

2. As & result, the State of North Dakota has raecelved manies in violation
of faderal law, 42 U.S.C. § 1386p(a)(1).

z Federal Medicaid law does not z2uthorize the Department to recover
a Medicald recipient's third parly bensiils in an amount exceeding the portion that
constituted reimbursemient for medical payments made, and the federal antl-lien

provision affirmatively prohibits it from doing so.
]
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4, A5 z result of said practices, the Depariment has reczived and Is

[*I)

-

receiving substantial sums of monizs 0 which it 1s Hot en

e J.I..,J I R s
[RANRY Lo CHIL,J 1 o> oo \

v

unjustly enriched at the expense of the Plaintifi and the ss Members.

5. Plzintiff brings this case on behalf of hersslf and a class of Medicaid
recipients who have received third-party benefits and hac & demsznd asserted
and/or monies improperly paid to the Department.

PARTIES
6. Jeannette Delacerde is a resicent of the State of North Dakota. Ms.

Delacerda was recently divorced and now uses her maiden name: Jeannette
¥

Sanderson.

7 The North Dakota Department of Human Services is an agency of the

tate of Norh Dakota. The Department administers the Medisaid program which

o

involves the payment of medical expenses for sligible individuzls from funds

provided by both the State and Federal Government.

5 Carol Olson is the Director of the Department of Human Services and

.

ovaersess all employses and all responsibilitics of the Department.

Q. Galen Hanson is an employee of the Dspartment who based upon

information and beliaf is involved In the dscision-making process pertaining to third

narty liability recovery. Basad upon inforrnation and belief, Galen Hanson is the

Third Pary Liability Acministrator.
10,  Annefte Bendish is an employee of the Department who bassd upon
information and belief is involved in the decision-making process pertaining to third

arty hability recovery.

[
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

This Is in part, an action for dsclaratory judgment pursuant to 29
U.S.C.A.§ 2201 giving this Court jursdiction.

—

Pursuant 1o the other identified
acilons, this Court also has original jurisdiction unda
and under 28 U.3

C.A § 1237

25 U

A S o 4
DAL {:ft 247
e

[

Venue is proper in this Court because the actions giving rise to the
claims asserted herein took place within this district.

THE CLASS
13, Namad Plaintiff brings this action as 3
hersell and a2

=]

Clase defined to incluce "All

class action on behalf of
Medlcaid from the North Dakote Department o

individuais who have

£
T

recelved

Human Services and who have
had monies demandes and/or taken by the departmeni out of their third-party
benefits ”

¥ E)
gy

> defined above

lass Is uneambiguous. The

c

D

C

15 dentifizbis.

O

control of the Department. Th

)]

=

lass can be idzntified through records in
she se

ks to represent.

Named Plaintiff is a member of the Class
Class

that

Members can be notified through publi
and/or direct mallings using cortact information maintainad in the usual course af

cation
business by the Department.

15

Class Members are so numerous that their irdividual joinder is

]
impracticable. The pracise numbar of Class Members iz unknown 1o the Plaintid,
p

but it is clear that the number significantly exceads the number to make |oinder

Lo
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impossibls.

Members.

17.  The Injuries sustained by the Ciass Members flow, in each instance.
from a common nucleus of operative facts — the Departmen®'s misconduct in
demanding and recziving monies in violation of fedaral law. Thare are questions
of law or fact common to the Ciass, including at least the following:
whether the Defendants have demanded and/or received monies

om WMedicaid recipiznts’ third party benefits in violation of federal
ya‘\/\-’;

i)

b. whether the Department breached its "contract” with the Plaintiff and
the Class members:

C. whethser the Deparment has baen unjustly snriched at the expensze
of the Plzintif and the Class membsrs by its misconduch

d. whether the Deonariment must disgorge any and all monies it has
raceived as a rasult of its misconduct; and

whather the Dafendants should be enjoined from asserting further
demands ggainst Medicaid recipients’ third narty Deneﬂts in violation

[©]

of federal law.

18. The Named Plzintiff will fairly and adequatsly represent and protect

the interesie of the Class. The Named Plaintiff is familiar with the basic facts tha!

form the basis of the Clazs Membere' claims. The Named Plaintiff's interests do

L Lo

ot conflict with the Interests of the other Class Members she seeks to represent.

nd experienced in class

The Named P.aintiff has refainad counsel competent
action litigation. and intends to presecuie this action vigorously,
1¢. The class acrion device is superior to the other available methods for

the fair and efiicient adjudication of the cizims of the Named Plaintiff and the

s
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Ciass Members. Plzintifl and the members of the Class have suffered irreparable

harm 2s a resuit of Cefendants’ unlawful conduct. The samages sufferad by

md‘wdua‘ Class mesmbars mey be relatively small, and thus few, if eny, individual
class members can afford to seek legal redress on an individual basis for the

wrongs complained of herein. Absent a class action, Plaintiff and members of the

Class will continue tc suffer losses as a result of Defencants’ uniawiul conduct.

JURY DEMAND
20.  The Named Plaintiff and the Class Members demand a tria! by jury.
| FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
21, Federal Medicaid law requires participating States to "ascertain the

laga: liability of third partie to pay for [an incividual benefits reclpient's] care

and services avallable under the [State's] plan” 42 U.S.C. § 1393a(2)(25)(A); to

vtent of such iegal Hablllty,"

¢

"seek reimbursement for [medical] assistanca to ths

Dy
D

§ 139Ca(e)(25)(B); to enact "laws under which, to the extent that payment has

besn made ... for medical assistance for health care items or services furnished

to an individual, the Statz is considered to have acquired the rights of such

individual to payment by any other party for such health care items or services.”
§ 1396a(a)(25)(H); to "provide that, as a condition of [IWedicaid] eligibility ..., the
individual is required ... (A) to assign the State any rights ... toc payment for

medical care from any third party; ... (B) to cooperzie with the State .. in

ohtaining [such] payments ... and ... (C) ... in identifying, anc providing

information to assist the State in pursuing v third party who may be liable "

s}

~

Sk(a)1). See. Arkansas Department of Health ang Human Services =1 al, v

1396

("3

\

Ahlborn, 126 5.C1 1752, 1753-1754 (2006
, J

Ly
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22. Further, "any amount coliected by the State under an assignmen!
macds" a3 dascribad above "shall be reteinsd by (ths Slate ... to reimburse i for

[Medicaid] peayments made on bzhalf of the recipient” § 1296kib). "[Tlhe
remainder of such amount coliected shall be paid” 1o the recipient. /hid.

23, Acting pursuant to its understanding of these provisions, the Stats

& £ 1

f North Dakota pacsad laws under wnich "the department shall recover the ful
amount of all medical assistance provided on behalf of a recipient to the full
extent of third-party benefits received by the recipient or the department Tor
medical expenses.” NDCC § 50-24.1-30(5)

24, The Unitaed States Supreme Court has held that 2 state cannot claim

more than the portion of the Medicaid recipients sa2ttiement that represents

medical expenses. Arkansas Dspartment of Health and Human Servicss v

Ahlborn, 126 S.CtL 1752 (2006).

25. ederal third-party llzbility provisions require a Medicaid recipient, as

a condition of eligibility, 1o assign the State any rights 10 payment for medical care

from any third party. 42 U.S. § 1386k(e)(1)(A), Arkaneas Departmen! of Health

and Human Services v. Ahlborn, 126 S.CL 1752, 1761 (2006).
26. Federal third-party lizbility provisions "[do] not sanction an
assignment of rights to payment for znything othar than medical expensas - not

£

lost wages, not pain and suffering. not an inharitance . Arkansas Depariment oi

Health and Human Services v. Ahlborn, 126 S.Ct. 1752, 1761 (2008,

extend only to

. the State's aesig

u
:{
w

§V]
—
om

d )

27. Under the federal 3tatutes

recovay of payments for medical care. "§ 12968M(b) requires the State be paid jirst

o

out of any damanes represanting payments for medical care.” and "the federal

6
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third-party liability provisions reouire an assignment of no more than the right ©
recover that poriion of a setlement that represants paymant for medical carg”. Jd.

28, The Department is gllowed by federzl law 1o demarnid as a condition
of Medicaid eligibility that the recipient assign in advance ary paymens that may
constitute reimbursement for medical costs.

29. The Deparfmens may not however force an assignmeant or place 2

lien on any other portion of the Plaintiff's and Class Members' recovery. Arkansas

Department of Health and Human Services v. Ahlborn, 125 3.CL 1752, 1763
{2008},
30, Ir the overwhelming rnaiority of third-party benefit cases, parties sucn

as the Named Plaintifi and the Class NMambers do not receive a specifically
allocated payment and/or reimbursement for mzdical expsnsses as part of their
recovery for their damages.

31, The Dspartmeni has taken the position that when there is no
iaentification or stipulation as 1o the amount of third-party benefite attrhutable (o
medical expenses in any giver case, then the third-party benefits recovery is
simply presumed (o include the full amount of the Department's medizal expense

ciaim. In such cases, the Depariment then demands paymeant of the full amount of

\j)

all medical assistance provided up to the full extent of the recovery. Defendant
use of such a presumption violates apolicablz federal and state law in this matter

3 Thus, the Department has been wrongfully demanding and receiving

DL POy

recovery in third-party liaoiiny c2ses in violatior. of fedaral znd siaie law
33 Ag a resull of the Defendants' inientional anz wrongful conduct, any

gs 07 imitztions have bzern wlied.

~J
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34. As a result of Defendants’ intentional end wrongful conduct,
Defendants hizve waived and 3h0UID 5& S37CpHEC rom any claims of immunity,
inciuding, but not limited to any claims of sovereign immunity.

COUNT 1

CLAIMS PURSUANT TO 28 U.S.C.A. § 2201

35, The Named Plaintiff re-alleges sll paragraphs as if fully set forth herain.

56. Federal law outlines the parties’ respective rights and obligzations in this

2

matter. Faderal law pre-empts any and zll state laws end regulations regardin

these matters.

37 Federal law provides that the Department i¢ not entitled to third-party
benefits In any amount greater than the percentage its rembursement interast

bears to the total inss susiained by the Named Plamtiil and the Ciass Members,

38, The Named Plaintiff requests that the Court declare ths parties’ rights
in the third party recoveries obtained by the Named Plziniff and the Class
Members.

COUNT 2

CLAIMS PURSUANT TO 42 U.S.C, § 1883

39 The Named Plantiff re-alleges all paragraphs as if fully set forth
herein.

40, The Named Plaintiff and Class meambers are parsons within ths
meaning of 42 U.8.C. §19823, and have the capacily 1o sus.

<1 As set Torth herein. the Defendants havz laken the property of the

MNamed Plaintiff end the Class Members without hearing or dus processs by

asserting liens zng otherwise demanding and receiving recovery out of third party

2
&
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recoveries without consideration of the extant to which medical expensas are part

~L L A
AR

N N V-1 1 N P B e o~
07 sulh TeCoveary, all in viciation o Sras anG 3ate !L‘A\f\'.

42. The acts of the Defendants, ac set forth herain. resulied in vinlatinn

[§N

of the Named Plaintifi's and Class Members' civil rights.
The Defendants’ actions are in violation of federal statutory and

-
435,

constitutional law including but not limited to 42 U.S.C. § 1396(k) and U.S.

Constitutional Amendments V and XIV.
a4, The acte of the Defendants were under color of state law. and suck

o~

conduct subjectsd the Named Plaintli anc the Class Members to a deprivation of

rights, privileges, and immunities secured by the Faderal Constitution and laws.
45. The Named Plaintiff and the Class Members hzd 2 right to receive

the emount of their third-party beneflts not atiributable to medgical expanses ir

accordancae with fedaral and state 13w,

48 As z result of Delendants’ actions, Plaintiffs and the Cizss Membears

[N i

received less than the full amount of their recovery (o whicn they wers entitled.

47 A5 a result of Defendants’ actions Plaintiffe and the Class Members

have been damaged
COUNT 3

UNJUST ENRICHMENT

48 Plaintiff re-al'eges all paragraphs a3 if fully set forth herein,
48. 49, As set forth hereir, the Defondants have taken the property of

the Named Plaintiff and the Class Members by asserting Hens and otherwi

dermanding and receiving recovery oul of third party recoveries withiou!
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sideration of the extent to which medical expenses are part of such recovery,
all in violatlon of federal and state law.

50.  Thus, the Departmient has been unjusty enrichad in that it received
and retained thae banefits of the proceeds from third party recovery claims which It
would not heve received but for their misconduct 3s alleged harain,

21. Thase benefils were obtained from, and to the detriment of, the
Named Plaintiff and the Class Members.

52.  Allowing Defendants to retain the aforementioned benefits violates
fundamental principles of justice, equity, and good canscience.

COUNT 4

BREACH OF CONTRACT

33, The Namad Plaintiff re-alleges all paragraphs zs 1f fully set forth
herein.
54, As set forth herzin, the Defendants are allowed by federal law to

demand as a condition of Madicaid sligibility that the racipient assigr in advance

.

any payments that my constitute reimbursement for madical costs.

55. Ths Named Plaintiff and the Class WMembers enferad into an
agreement with Defendants {c assian their third sarty recovery rights to the extent

allowed by federal law.

56. At gl relevant times, the Named Filainigit and the Cizss Members

have complied with their obligations and conditions under their agrzemenis with

the Defendants as required oy federal law.

breachad tnzslr agreemen: with the Named

—
Y]
<
b
O

45
et

7. Dsafendanis

(2]

10
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f-j

Plaintid and the Claze Members by asserting lizns and otherwisze demanding and
receiving recovery out of third party recovaries without conslderaticn ¢of the xien
to which medical expenses are part of such recovery, all in violation of federal

5.  To the extent the condltions of the agreements entered into by thg
Named Plaintiff and the Class Members with the Dsiendant exczed federsl
statutory authority these provisions are null and void.

COUNT S

INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

56 The Named Plaintiff re-alleges all paragraphs zs If fully set forth
harain
50 50, As sat forth herein, the Defendant has impropery {akaen the

property of the Namsd Plaintiff and the Class Members by asssrting liens and

otharwise demanding and receiving recovery out o7 third party recoveriss without
conslderaton of ine extent to which medical expenses are part of such recovery,
all in violation of federal and state law.

§1. Upcn information and belief, Defendant conilnues ks wrongful

practices and continues to assert liens and otherwise demand anc receive funds in

violation of federal and state law and the Ahlborn decision causing irreparable

harn.

2. As sst forth herein, the Named Plaintifi and Class hMembers have 3

()]

high probability of success on the merits o this acuon.

11
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WHEREFORE, ‘ne MNamed Plaintff, on bshall of harsslf and all others
similarly situated. prays for the following rzlief:
a. 4n order certifying the Plaintiff Class as set forth herain, with Plaintiff

O

[

s

Jeanctte Delacerda n/k/a Jeanetta Sanderson as the Class
rapresentative and Plaintiffs counsel as lead class counsel for the

1

A declaration of the parties rights to the third-party proceeds;

An order enjoining Defendant from asserting liens and receiving
recovery our of hMedlcaid recipients' third party recoveries in violation
of Federal or applicadle law.

tn order awarding restitution and disgorgament of ail third-party
henefits received by the Depariment as & rasut of its unlawful
practices complained of herein;

Judgment in favor of Plzintiff and the Class ageinst Defendant and
awarding camages to Plaintiff and the Class;

An award of reasonable attorneys' fess pursuant to 42 US.CA. §

1928,
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An award of rezsonabl
al owad by state and/or federal law; and

Such further rellef as this Court deems Just and proper.
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Dated this 23" day of April. 2008.

Respectfully Submitted,

/3! Thomas 4. Dickson

THOMAS A. DICKSON {ND BAR ID# 03800)
DICKSON LAW OFFICE

Tuscany Sgquare

107 Wast Main, Suite 150

P.O. Box 1896

Bismarck, ND 58507-1846

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFE

[

- and-

sl Jefrev S Weikuy,

JEFFREY 5. WEIKUM (ND BAR iD# 005344)
CRAIG A. BOECKEL (ND BAR ID# 004625)
PLGEL WEIKUM PLLP

1715 Bumnt Becat Drive

Madison Suite

Bismarck ND 53503

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS

1A




